
The PRESIDENT put to the vote the motion to 
close the debate. 

The motion was adopted by 12 votes to 4, 
with 2 abstentions. 

The PRESIDENT put to the vote the amended 
USSR draft resolution (E/1194 and E/1222). 

Mr. KATZ-SUCHY (Poland) requested a vote 
by roll-call. 

A vote. was taken by 1·oll-call as follows: 

In favour: Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Re
public, Poland, Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics. 

Against: Australia, Belgium, Brazil, Chile, 
China, Denmark, France, India, Lebanon,". New 
Zealand, Peru, Turkey, United Kingdom, 
United States of America, Venezuela. 

The draft resolution was rejected by 15 votes 
to J. · 

The nieeting rose at 1.05 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED AND SIXTY-FOURTH 
MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New York, 
on Monday, 7 March 1949, at 3 p.m. 

President: Mr. James THORN (New Zealand). 

76. Continuation of the discussion on 
infringements of trade union rights 
(E/822, E/822/ Add. I, E/822/ 
Add.2, E/1208 and E/1224) 

At the invitation· of the President, Mr. Arce 
representative of Argentina took a seat at the 
Council table. 

Mr. ARCE (Argentina) said that the observa
tions made by the WFTU could be divided into 
two categories: one relating to events alleged to 
have taken place on Argentinian territory, and 
the second criticizing the legal provisions con
cerning trade union rights in Argentina. 

He reminded the Council that under Article 
2, paragraph 7 of the Charter, the United Na
tions was not competent to intervene in matters· 
which were esseritially within the domestic juris
diction of any State. As that right was denied 
to the United Nations it should be so a fortiori 
to non-governmental organizations, whatever 
their status in relation to the Economic and 
Social Council. Furthermore, in the economjc 
and social fi eld the organs concerned, i.e. the 
General Assembly and the · Economic · and Social 
Council, were empowered by the Charter only to 
recommend that Member States should adopt 
certain measures. Such recommendations were 
not mandatory and the Council should not over
step its aHotteq task. 

Nor should the Council forget that the al
leged infringement of trade union rights came 
within the competence of the administrative 
authorities of the countries in which they were 
alleged to have taken place; those authorities 
could rectify the infringements; moreover the 
parties concerned could appeal to the local law 
courts of those countries. Minorities having no 
real influence in the trade union. organizations 
of their respective countries had been known to 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix Ia rp.otion de 
cloture. 

Par 12 voix contre 4, avec 2 a-bstentions, la 
motion est adoptee. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix le projet de resolu
tion revise de l'URSS (E/1194 et"E/1222). 

M. KATZ-SUCHY (Pologne) demande qu'il soit 
procede au vote par· appel nominal. 

1l est procede au vote pa1· appel nominal. 

· V otent p~ur: Republiq ue socialiste sovietique de 
Bielorussie, Pologne, Union des Republiques so
cialistes sovietiques. 

V otent contre: Australie, Belgique, Bresil, Chili, 
Chine, Danemark, France, Inde, Liban, Nouvelle
Zelande, Perou, Turquie, Royaume-Uni, Etats
Unis d'Amerique, Venezuela. 

Par 15.voix contre 3, le projet de resolution est 
rejete. 

La seance est levee a 13 h. 5. 

''DEUX-CENT-SOIXANTE-QUATRIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Sttccess, New-York, 
le lundi 7 mars 1949, a 15 hettres. 

President: M. James THORN ( N ouvelle-lelande). 

76. Suite de Ia discussion sur les viola
tions des droits syndicaux (E/822, 
E/822/ Add. I, E/822/ Add.2, E/ 
1208 et E/1224) 

Sur l'invita.tion du President, M. Arce, repre
sentant de l' Argentine, prend place a la table du 
Conseu. · 

M. ARCE (Argentine) declare que les observa
tions de la Federation syndicate mondiale rentrent 
dans deux categories: d'une part, elles s'appliquent 
a des evenements qui se seraient produits en terri-' 
toire argentin; d'autre part, elles contiennent des 
critiques relatives aux dispositions legales concer
nant les dro!ts syndicaux en Argentine. 

Le representant de !'Argentine rappelle qu'aux 
termes du paragraphe 7 de !'Article 2 de la Charte 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies n'a pas compe
tence pour intervenir dans des affaires qui rele- · 
vent essentiellement de Ia competence nationale 
d'un Etat. Si un tel droit est denie a !'Organisa
tion des Nations Unies, il doit- l'etre a fortiori 
a des organisations non gouvernementales, quel 
que soit le statut dont elles jouissent vis~a-vis du 
Conseil. De plus, en ce qui concerne le domaine 
economique et social, Ia Charte ne permet aux . 
organes interesses, c'est-a-dire a l'Assemblee gene
rale et au Conseil economique .et social, que de 
recommander aux Etats Membres !'adoption de 
certaines mesures. De telles recommandations 
n'ont aucun caractere imperatif et Je Conseil ne 

· doit pas depasser les limites de ce qu'il lui est 
permis de faire. 

Le representant de 1' Argentine estime qu'il 
convient de ne pas oublier d'autre .part que les 
pretendues violations des droits syndicaux rete
vent de la competence des autorites administratives 
des pays dans lesquels elles se seraient produites; 
ces autorites peuvent redresser les infractions et, 
de plus, les interesses peuvent avoir recours aux 
tribunaux j udiciaires .locaux de ces pays. En fin, 
il s'est produit que des minorites sans influence 
rcelle dans les associations syndicates de leur pays 

A71 



claim international standing which had no fusfi
fi<eation either in law or in fact since the major
ities of those organizations were forced to remain 
within the limits laid down by their domestic 
j urisdictidn. -

Although he believed that the facts mentioned 
by the WFTU .w~re outside -the jurisdiction of 
the United Nations, and of the Economic and 
Social Council' in particular, he recognized that 
abstract criticism of the legislation of Member 
States co_uld sometimes justify a recommenda-

-tion by the Council or the General Assembly. 
In such a case,- the Governme~ts - concerned 

- would obviously give very careful consideration 
to any recommendation aimed at improving their 

' .domestic legislation. Hence the Argentine dele
gation was glad that the question had been placed 
on the Council's agenda. He emphasized that 
the President's invitation to him to participate 
in the Council's work was_ not based ·an Article 
69 of the -Charter; it was simply .an act of -cour
tesy, for which he thanked the Council and the 
President. 

Mr. -Arce said that the Argentine Government 
had raised · the standard of living of the 'working 
class. It had given practical implementation to 
t~e social aspirations and legal principles which 
were the basts of the workers' right to a decent 
life, well-being and economic securitY. It had 
not confined itself to domestic measures; it had 
also_ put forward concrete proposals at interna
tional conferences designed to improve the lot 
of the 'working classes throughout the world, 
and its representatives had always voted in that 
sense: 

He next referred to Decree No. -23852, dated 
2 October 1945, which. had been criticized by 
the WFTU. The Decree had been adopted by 
Congress, in which Argentine trade unions were 
well represented, and had thus become Act No. 
12921. . 

The aim of the Act was to regulate and at the 
same · time to ensure one of the trade . union 
rights, nalnS!lY the right of association. The law 
re-affirmed and guaranteed the right of ctrade 
union association, although it was only normal 
and logical that it should prohibit the setting-up 
of associations for the . purpose of undermining 
the constitutional institutions of the country, 
since such associations 'disavowed the funda
mental objectives of trade unionism. 

_ The Constitution of 1853 guaranteed in gen
eral tne right of association in accordance with 
existing legislation and regulations.' It was in
tended that the revised constitution now under 
examination shopld proclaim the right of assem-

. - bly, which was not explicitly mentioned in the 
old constitution. The · new constitution would 
also embody the rights of workers, the list of 
which was too well known to need repeti!ion. 

Act No. 12921 had been criticized for divid
ing worl~ers' ass~ciations into - three categories, 
only one of which enjoyed the guarantees laid 
down by the Constitution. That was not really' 
a criticism, however, since it signified that the 
present Government recognized not only non
occupational organizations set up by the workers 
but also occupational organizations established 
to protect their interests. In accordance with the 
practice recommended by _ the . International 

d'origine ont pretendu jouer un role international . 
qui n'e_st justifie ni du ,Point de vue juridique, ni 
en fait, car les majorites de ces memes organisa
tions syndicates sont obligees . de rester dans le 
cadre des Vmites que leur fixent les lois nationales. 

M. Arce estime que -les faits meritionnes par Ia. 
FSM echappent ala juridiction de !'Organisation 
des Nations Unies et en particulier du Conseil 
economique et social; il admet cependant qu'une 
critique abstraite de la legislation des Etats Mem
bres peut, le cas echeant, justifier tine recomman
dation de la part_ du Conseil ou de 1' Assemblee 
generale. Dans ce cas, il est certain que les Gou
vernements int<!resses considereraient avec Ia plus 
grande attention une -recommandation destinee a 
ameliorer leur legislation national e.-C' est dans cet 
esprit que la delegation de 1' Argentine- se felicite 
que cette question ait ete portee a l'ordre du jour 
du Conseil. M. Arce souligne que !'invitation que 
le President lui a adressee departiciper aux tra
vaux du Conseil n'est pas fondee sur l'Article 69 
de la Charte; c'est un simple acte de courtoisie a 
son egard, et M. Arce en remercie le Conseil et 
son President. 

M. Arce declare que Ie Gouvernement argentin 
a . releve le niveau de vie de la classe ouvriere. I1 
a donne une expression pratique aux aspirations 
sociales et aux principes juridiques qui sont a la 
base du droit qu'onf les travailleurs a une exis
tence decente, au bien-etre et a la securite econo
mique. Le Gouvernement argentin ne s'est pas 
borne a prendre des mesures internes; il a egale
ment fait des propositions concretes visant a ame
liorer le sort de la classe ouvriere dans le monde 
entier, et ses representants ont toujours vote dans 
ce sens. · 

Le representant de 1' Argentine examine ensuite 
le decret No 23852, en date du 2 octobre 1945, 
qu'a critique la FSM. Ce decret a ete transforme 
en loi par le Congres, oit les organisations syndi
cates argentines sont Iargement representees, et il _ 
est ainsi devenu la loi No 12921. 

Cette loi vise a reglementer et en meme temps 
a assurer l'un des droits syndicaux, le droit d'asso
ciation. S'il est normal et logique -que la loi in
terdise la formation d'associations dont le but est 
d'attenter aux institutions constitutionnelles du 
pays, associations qui renient par consequent les 
buts fondamentaux du syndicalisme, il n'en reste _ 
pas moins qu'elle affirme et _garantit le droit 
d'association syndicate. 

La Constitution de 1853 garantit de fa<;on gene
rate le droit d'association dans le cadre des lois 
et des reglements. On projette d'inscrire dans la 
constitution revisee, qui est actuellement a !'etude, 
le droit de reunion, qui n'est pas expressement 
mentionne dans la constitution en vigueur. On 
envisage . egalement d'inscrire dans la nouvelle 
constitution les droits des travailleurs, droits dont 
la liste est trop connue pour qu~il y ait lieu 
d'insister sur elle. . · 

On a reproche ala loi No 12921 de diviser les 
associations _de travailleurs en trois categories, 
_dont l'une seulement jouit des garanties inscrites 
dans Ia Constitution. Ce reproche n'en est pas un, 
car i1 signifie que le Go.uvernement actuel recon
nait non seulement les associations civiles que les 
travailleurs peuvent organiser, mais egalement les 
associations professionnelles formees dans le but 
de defendre- leurs irit«!rets. Suivant la pratique 
conseillee par !'Organisation internationale du 



Labour Organisation concerning the ·nomina
tion of employers' and workers' . delegates, Act 
No.- 12921 made tise of the expression "suffi
ciently representative" lo ensure that vocational 
organizations should indeed represent the ma
jority of each group of workers and thus demo
cratically assume the defence of their interes~. 

Paragraph 6 of article 33 of that Act had 
also been criticized. Mr. Arce was particularly' 
gratified by that criticism, -since it emphasized 
one of the advantages enjoyed by occupational 
organizations in Argentina: such a~socia:tions 
could not engage in political activities without 
having complied beforehand with the regula
tions concerning the activities of political parties. 
That provision was an advantage rather than a 
limitation. It had been singled out for attack by 
the WFTU, which had alleged that the Govern
ment could thus intervene in the affairs of the 
Argentine General Confederation of Labour, · 
which had a membership of over three million. 
In reality the contrary seemed more probable. 
·would it not be more logical to assume that the 
political and social orientation of the Govern
ment of a country with only sixteen million in
habitants could be influenced by the General 
Confederation of Labour? 

Article 49 of Act No. 12921 had also incurred 
criticism. In that connexion he explained that 
workers were entitled: ( 1) to address requests 
to the authorities or employers either direct or 
through their ·representatives; (2) freely to elect 
their representatives; (3) to take part in con
certed action -for collective negotiations or for 
mutual aid or protection; ( 4) to carry out col
lective negotiations through occupational organ
izations and ( 5) to meet, to organize themselves 
and to become members of occupational organ
izations. 

Furthermore, artiCle 50 of the same Act laid 
dow_n that the following activities by employers 
in their relations with the workers were to be 
regarded' as unfair and unethical : subsidizing 
any occupational association, either directly or 
indirectly; hindering. or prohibiting the em
ployees · of any undertaking from joining an 
occupational association, whether by means· of 
gratuities or promises, or by making· non-affili
ation a condition for obtaining or retaining em
ployment; by similar _ methods encouraging the 
affiliation of personnel to any particular asso
ciation to the detriment of another regular asso
ciation; carrying out reprisals · against workers 
engaged in trade union activities, who · had ac
cused an employer of dishonest practices or had 
given evidence or taken part in judicial proceed
ings; refusing to enter into collective negotiations 
with the workers in conformity with existing 
regulations; suspending or altering working con
ditions laid down in collective agreements with 
the intention of hindering or prohibiting the legal 
exercise of trade union rights by· the . workers. 

The results achieved by the implementation of 
that Act and the carrying out of President Peron's 
prograinme were well known; indeed, the lot of 
the Argentine working class had greatly im
proved, and the workers of many other countries 

Travail en ce qui .concerne la designation des 
delegues pati·ommx et ouvriers, Ia loi No 12921 
utilise l'epithete "suffisamment representatif" pour 

· assurer que les associations professionnelles repre
sentent en fait la majorite de chaque groupe de -
travailleurs et assument ainsi de fa<;on democra-
tique Ia defense des interets de ceux-ci. · 

On a egalement critique le paragraphe 6 de 
!'article 33 de cette loi. M. Arce se felicite particu'
lierement de cette critique qui met ainsi en re~ief 
un des avantages accordes aux associations pro
fessionnelles d' Argentine: celles-ci ne peuvent se 
livrer a des activites de caractere politique san·s 
s'etre au prealable conformees a Ia reglementation 
relative a l'activite des partis politiques. En fait, 
cette disposition constitue plutot un avantage 
qu'une limitation. La FSM s'est attaquee particu
lierement a cette disposition et a pretendu que, de 
cette fa<;on, le Gouvernement peut intervenir dans 
les affaires de Ia Confederation generate du 
travail d'Argentine; qui groupe plus de trois mil
lions d'adherents. En realite, c'est le contraire qui 
serait plus vraisemblable. N e ser,ait-il pas plus 
logique de supposer que c'est la Confederation 
generale du travail qui se trouve en mesure d'in
fluer sur !'orientation politique· et sociale du Gou
vernement d'un pays qui ne compte que seize 
millions d'habitants? 

On a egalement critique !'article 49 de la loi 
No 12921. Le representant de !'Argentine precise 
a ce sujet que les travailleurs ont le droit: 1) 
d'adresser des demandes aux autorites gouverne-

. mentales ou aux employeurs, soit directement, soit 
par I'intermediaire de leurs representants; 2) 
d'elire librement leurs representants; 3) de 
prendre part a des activites concertees en vue de 
negociations collectives ou pour s'accorder une -
aide ou une protection rputuelles; 4) de proceder · 
a des negociations 'collectives par l'intermediaire 
des associations professionnelles; 5) de se reunir, 
de s'organiser et de devenir membres d'une asso-
ciation professionnelle. · · 

Par ailleurs !'article 50 de Ia meme loi etablit
que les activites des employeurs enumerees ci
apres seront considerees comme etant des pra
tiques deloyales et contraires a l'ethique des rela
tions professionnelles avec les travailleurs: 
accorder des subventions directes ou indirectes a 
-une association professionnelle ; gener ou inter
dire !'affiliation de leur personnel a une association 
professionnelle, que ce soit par des gratifications 
ou des promesses, .ou en faisant de Ia non-affilia
tion une condition pour obtenir ou conserver un 
emploi; encourager par les memes methodes !'affi
liation du personnel a une certaine association au 
detriment d'une autre association regulier~; se 
livrer a des represailles contre les travailleurs sous 
pretexte qu'ils se livrent a des activites syndicales, 
qu'ils ont accuse un employeur de pratiques de
loyales ou qu'ils ont temoigne ou sont intervenus 
au cours d'un proces relatif a ces pratiques; se 
refuser a des . negociations collectives avec les 
travailleurs conformement aux reglements en 
vigueur ; suspendre ou modifier les conditions de 
travail du personnel etablies dans les accords col
lectifs, dans le but d'interdire ou d'entraver l'exer
cice par les travailleurs des droits syndicaux, 
conformement aux lois. 

L es consequences de !'application de cette loi 
et de Ia realisation du programme du Presid~t 
Peron . sont ·bien connues. C'est un fait que la 
classe ouvriere d'Argentine a vu son sort s'ame..: 
liorer de maniere considerable et .les travailleurs 

473 



-_ recognized that th~ action . of the Argentine Gov
ernment had been just and beneficial. If .those 
facts did not convince the WFTU of the ab
surdity of its accusations it was none the less 
true that the Argentine working class unreserved
ly · supported the present Government; that sup
port was sufficient proof that they recognized ·the 
social advantages they had gained. 

Mr. Sowvmv (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) said the Council had been able to ex
amine the note submitted by the WFTU, which 
gave information with regard to the violation of 
certain principles . of the Charter and of certain 
provisions of resolutions adopted both by the 
General Assembly and the Economic and Social 
Council. · 

In Greece, the Government had forbidden all 
free trade union elections and had taken repres
sive measures against the workers, going so far as 
to intern trade union workers and persecute the 
leaders of the trade union movement. The repre
sentatives of Chile, Brazil and Greece had tried 
to justify the action of their Governments by 
attacking other countries. Their attacks, however, 
misled no ·one. 

There could be no doubt that the governing 
classes in the capitalist countries were defending 
the interests of industrialists and of monopolies, 
and that through the adoption of legislation di
rected against the working class, they were plac
ing the workers in a state of complete depend
ence. The aim of that policy was either simply 
to suppress trade unions or to change them into 
docile tools of the Governments. Thus capitalist 
interests had been trying since the end of the 
Second World War to increase the output of 
the workers and to lower their standard of living. 
It should be recalled that the hitlerite regime had 
begun by taking similar measures; it had sup
pressed all trade union liberties and had trans
formed the trade unions into a tool of capitalist 
interests. Some capitalist countries, including the 
United States, had adopted that method. In 1947, 
the United States Congress had passed the Taft
Hartley Act, which practically annihilated all 
trade union liberties and prevented the workers 
-from defending their vital interests. 

-_The Act abolished the right to strike, which 
was one of the elementary rights of the working 
class. The decrease in the number of strikes in 
the United States did not mean, therefore, that 
the workers' living conditions had improved but 
rather that the struggle against the working class 
had become more intense. 

He emphasized that in his view. the leade;;"of 
the Ameri_can Federation of Labor were acting 
under orders from Wall Street businessmen. The . 
attacks which the AF of ·L had launched against 
the USSR in the hope of camouflaging its true 
,activities had revealed its real aim, which was 
.to help in the preparation of war against the 
USSR. The leaders of the American Federation 
of Labor had gone over to the camp of the en
emies of the working class, as was shown by 
its fight to prevent the world-wide unification of 
the trade union movement in the World Federa
tion of T rade Unions. 

Mr. Sci1oviev emphasized that the workers in 
the Soviet Union were working with enthusiasm; 
it was the ' only country whe~e a socialist system 

de beaucoup d'autres · pays_ reconnalssent que · 
!'action du Gouver.nement argentin a_ ete juste et 
bienfaisante. Si ces faits ne reussissent -pas a 
convaincre la FSM de l'absurdite de ses accusa
tions, il n'en reste pas moins que Ia classe ouvriere 
soutient sans reserve le Gouvernement actuel, 
et cet appui est une preuve suffisante de ce· que les 
travailleurs argentins reconnaissent les conquetes 
sociales qu'ils' ont obtenues. 

M. Sowvmv (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) declare que le Conseil a pu prendre 
connaissance de .Ia note presentee par la Federa
tion syndicale ~ondiale et qui expose dans queUes 
conditions ont ete violes certains principes de la 
Charte et certaines dispositions contenues dans 
des resolutions adoptees tant par 1' Assemblee 
generale que par le Conseil economique et social. 

En Grece, le Gouvernement a interdit toute 
election syndicale libre et a pris des mesures de 
repression contre les travailleurs, 'allant jusqu'a 
interner des ouvriers syndiques et a molester . les 
dirigeants du mouvement syndical. Les repre
sentants du Chili, du Bresil et de la Grece ont 
tente de justifier !'action de leurs Gouvernements 
en procedant a des attaques contre d'autres pays, 
attaques qui ne trompent personne. · 

II est impossible, en effet, de dementir le fait 
que les cercles dirigeants des pays capitalistes de
fendent les inten!ts des entrepreneurs et des mono
poles et placent les travailleurs dans un etat de 
dependance absolue, cela en adoptant une legisla
tion dirigee contre Ia classe ouvriere. Cette poli
tique vise, soit a supprimer purement et simple
ment les syndicats, soit a faire des syndicats un 
instrument docile du Gouvernement. C'est ainsi 
que les interets capitalistes s'efforcent, depuis la 
fin de la deuxieme guerre mondiale, de developper 
!'exploitation des travailleurs et d'abaisser leur 
niveau de vie. On doit se rappeler que le regime 
hitlerien a commence sa carriere par des mesures 
similaires ; il a supprime toute liberte syndicale 
et il a fait des syndicats un_ outil a la disposition 
des interets capitalistes. Certains pays capitalistes, 
dont les Etats-Unis, ont adopte cette methode. 
Le Congres des Etats-Unis a vote en 1947 la l<?_i 
Taft-Hartley _qui supprime pratiquement toute 
liberte syndicale et empeche les travailleurs 
d'assurer la defense de leurs interets vitaux. 

· Cette loi interdit le droit de greve, l'un des 
droits les plus elementaires de la classe ouvriere. 
Aussi la diminution du no~bre des greves aux 
Etats-Unis ne signifie-t-elle pas que les conditions 
de vie des travailleurs se sont ameliorees, mais que 
la lutte contre la classe ouvriere s'est intensifiee. 

Le representant de l'URSS souligne qu'a son 
avis les dirigeants de la Federation americaine 
du Travail sont aux ordres des hommes d'affaires 
de Wall Street. Les attaques que l'AF of L a 
lancees contre !'Union. sovietique, dans l'espoir 
de camoufler sa veritable activite, montrent quel 
est son objectif: il consiste a aider a la prepara
tion de la guerre contre l'URSS. Les dirigeants 
de la Federation americaine du Travail sont passes 
dans le camp des ennemis de la classe ouvriere; 
il suffit de se rappeler Ia lutte que cette Federation 
a entreprise contre !'union du syndicalisme 
mondial au sein de la F ederation syndicale 
mondiale . . 

M. Soloviev souligne qu'en Union sovietique, 
seul pays ou le regime de production sociale soitc, 
en vigueur, les ouvriers travaillent avec enthou:-

.17.1 



of production wa,s in force. The revolulion of 
October 1917 had abolished capitalism and placed 
the means of production in the hands of the 
workers themselves·. Since then, the productivity 
of labour, as well as the well-being of the work
ing class and of the entire population, had con
tinued to increase. The leaders of the American 
Federation of Labor had launched a bitter cam
paign of propaganda against the USSR, but had 
forgotten to mention how many times trade union 
rights had been violated in the United States 
itself. 

Numerous infringements of trade union rights 
had been observed in other capitalist countries. 
He quoted legislation enacted during the war by 
the United Kingdom Government and a decision 
taken by the Minister of Labour of that coun
try in March 1946 which worsened the lot of 
the workers, as it enabled the Minister of Labour, 
when he thought fit, to prosecute the leaders of 
the trade union movement. 

In November 1948 the French C onjederatio1t 
generale du travail had submitted a memorandum 
t6 the Council on the circumstances in which 
the strikes in the coal mines had been suppressed 
in October and November 1948. The manner in 
which the French Government had used the army 
to end those strikes and to violate the legitimate 
rights of the miners showed that the leading 
circles of the capitalist countries were now adopt
ing methods worthy of the fascist regime. There 
was no need for further information: the Press 
_reports of that period had been sufficiently elo
quent by presenting the facts in an objective man
ner. 

"The American authorities in Japan were not 
implementing the decisions taken at Potsdam: 
they had forbidden a general strike in 1947; in 
1948 they had taken a similar decision and had 
prevented the conclusion of collective agreements. 

The representatives of Chile, Greece and Bra
zil had spoken at length in an effort to disprove 
that their respective Governments had abolished 
trade union liberties. They had been. unable to 
ref.ute the facts set forth in the . note of the 
WFTU. The Greek Government had established 
a reign of terror and was sentencing to forced 
labour anyone who had taken part in a strike. 
It recognized only those organizations which 
submitted to its orders . 

.A new constitution had been in effect in Brazil 
since September 1946, which recognized freedom 
of_ association and the right tp strike, But a 
memorandum from the Minister of Labour issued 
in November 1946 had made it clear that the old 
laws forbidding freedom of association and the 
right to strike nevertheless still remained in 
effect. · · 

In Chile it had been possible to violate trade 
union rights owing to the extraordinary powers 
granted to the President. On 26 March 1947 the 
authorities had rigorously suppressed a strike. 
The same thing had happened in December 1947, 
when the miners had wanted to call a strike. 
The army had used tear-gas against the workers; 
1,500 persons had been imprisoned and thou
sands of others had been exiled; The Chilean 

. representative had not mentioned those facts, and 

siasme. En effet, Ia Revolution d'octobre 1917 a 
supprime Ie capitalisme et plac~ Ies moyens de 
production entre les mains des travailleurs eux
memes. Depuis· lors, la productivite du travail 
ainsi que Ie bien-etre de Ia classe ouvriere et de la 
population tout entiere n'ont fait que s'accroitre. 
Les dirigeants de Ia Federation americaine du 

. Travail ont entrepris une campagnede propagande 
haineuse contre l'URSS mais- ils ont oublie de 
mentionner combien de fois les droits syndicaux 
ont ete violes aux Etats-Unis memes. 

On a eriregisti·e de nombreuses violations dil 
droit syndical dans d'autres pays capitalistes. Le 
representant de !'Union sovietique cite a cet egard 
une loi mise en vigueur pendant Ia guerre par 
le G,ouvernement du Royaume-U ni, ainsi qu'une 
decision prise en mars 1946 par le Ministre du 
Travail de ce pays, decision qui aggrave Ia situa
tion des travailleurs, car elle permet au Ministre 
du travail, Iorsqu'il le juge utile, de faire com
paraitre devant les tribunaux les dirigeants du 
mouvement ouvrier. · · 

La Confederation generale du travail fran<;aise 
a presente au Conseil, en novembre 1948, un me
morandum sur Ies conditions dans Iesquelles les 
greves dans les charbonnages ont ete reprimees 
en octobre et novembre 1948. La fac;on dont le 
Gouvernement franc;ais s'est servi de l'armee po.ur 
mettre fin aces greves et pour porter atteinte aux 
droits legitimes des mineurs montre que les cercles 
dirigeants des pays capitalistes adoptent desormais 
des methodes dignes du regime fasciste. II est 
inutile de donner plus de renseignements; le? 
communiques de presse ont ete, a l'epoque, suffi
samment eloquents en presentant ob j ectivement 
les faits . . 

Le representant de l'URSS declare · qu'au 
Japon les autorites americaines n'appliquent pas 
les decisions adoptees a Potsdam: en 1947, elles 
ont interdit une greve generale; en 1948, elles ont 
pris une decision identique et empeche Ia conclu
sion de contrats collectifs. 

M. Solovit'!v estime que les representants du 
Chili, de la Grece et du Bresil ont beaucoup parle 
pour essayer de nier que leurs Gouvernements 
mit supprime Ia Iiberte syndicate; ces repn!sen
tants n'ont pu refuter Ies faits exposes dans Ia 
note de Ia FSM. Le Gouvernement grec fait 
regner Ia terreur, punit de travaux forces qui
conque a participe a une greve, et ne reconnait 
que les organisations qui sont a ses ordres. 

Au Bresil, une nouvelle constitution est en 
yigueur depuis septembre 1946: elle reconnait 
la Iiberte d'association et le droit de greve. Mais 
le Ministre du travail, par une circulaire de 
novembre 1946, a precise que Ies anciennes lois 
interdisant Ia Iiberte d'association et Ie droit de 
greve restaient neanmoins en vigueur. 

Au Chili, ii a ete possible de ~ioler les droits 
syndicaux grace aux pouvoirs extraordinaires 
accordes au President. Le 26 mars 1947, les pou
voirs publics ont reprime ~ne greve -avec rigueur. 
II en a ete de meme en decembre 1947, lorsque 
Ies mineurs ont voulu declencher ime greve. 
L'armee a employe Ies gaz lacrymogenes contre 
les travailleurs; 1.500 personnes ont ete emprison
nees et des milliers d'autres e.Xilees. Le represen
tant du Chili n'a pas mentionne ces faits et s'est 

475 



had confined hin~self t~ launching attacks against 
the Soviet Union in his customary manner. 
- The USSR delegation considered that the 

question of the violation of trade union rights 
was of considerable importance and that i~. was 
advisable to establish rules safeguarding those· 
rights. The right pf workers to associate and 
to defend their interests had to -be guaranteed. 

-The Council shoulq thus take cognizance of-vio
lations of trade union rights and sh_ould adopt_ 
recommendations in accordance with the spirit 
Of the proposals presented by the WFTU. __ In 
submitting its _memorandum, th~ Federation had 
fulfille_d the expectations of millions of workers. 
The Council could not disregard it. 

Mr. Soloviev then read a draft resolution pre
-sen ted by the USSR delegation (E/1224) . _ 

The PRESIDENT observed that, in accordance 
with the Council's resolution 95 III (V) of 16 

· August 1947, when an item had been it1cluded in 
the Council's agenda at the request of a non
governmental organization, the representative of 
that organization could make a. statement ex
pounding its point of view, and a second state- 
ment during the debate giving any supplementary 
~explanations which might be required. Mr. Sail- 
!ant had submitted the memorandum from the 
World Federation of Trade Unions. The Presi
dent' proposed that Mr. Toledano should make 
the necessary explanatory statement to the Coun
cil. 

At the invitation of the President, Mr. Tole
_dario, consultant from the World Federation of 
Trade Unions, took a seat at the Council table. 

Mr. ToLEDANO (World Federation of Trade 
Unions) thanked the President for having given 
him the opportunity to offer certain supplemen
tary -remarks. He would not follow the example 
of certain representatives who had attempted to 
di':'ert the discussion by resorting to arguments of 
a personal or political nature. 

All the delegations concerned had, directly_ or 
indirectly, confirmed the veracity of the facts set 
forth in- the memorandum from the WFTU; 
they had thus demonstrated the objective nature 
of that information. The World Federation of 
Trade Unions had done a service not only to the 
workers directly concerned, but also to world 

- opinion, which had to be informed of the true 
conditions prevailing in certain countries. 

He exposed various methods used by Govern
- merits which had violated trade union rights. In 
· the first place, those · Governments had made 
. every effort to obstruct the functioning of gen
uine trade union organizations. They had even ·. 
gone so far at times as to deprive those organiza
tions of their legal status. They had also r:e
i>laced them by otlier organizations supported 
either by business concerns or by· the Govern
ments themselves.-

In certain cases the exercise of the right of 
public assembly had also been forbidden. It had 
been made clear that on some occasions the au
thorities had had the premises of union groups 
occupied and their records confiscated. The col
lection of ttnion dues by independent organiza
tions had also been forbidden; on the other hand, 
dues had been deducted from salaries for union 
organizations sponsored by -the Government. 
Moreover, certain Governments had made the 

contente de lancer des attaques contre !'Union _ 
sovietique, selon sa methode habituelle. 

La delegation de l'URSS con~idere que Ia ques
tion de Ia violation des droits syndicaux presente 
une importance considerable et qu'il convient de 
fixer des regles sauvegardant ces droits. II faut, _ 
en effet, que le droit d'association des travailleurs 
et le droit des travailleurs a defendre leurs inten!ts 
soient garantis. Le Conseil doit done tenir compte 
des violations comni.ises contre le droit syndical et 
adopter des recommandations conformes a !'esprit 
des propositions presentees par Ia FSM. En sou- -
mettant son memorandum, cette Federation a re
pondu a l'espoir que mettent en elle des millions 
de travailleurs. Le Conseil ne peut ignorer cela. 

M. Soloviev donne ens·uite lecture du projet 
de resolution presente par Ia delegation de l'URSS 
(E/1224). 

Le' PRESIDENT declare que, conformement a Ia 
resolution 95 III (V) du Conseil- en date du 
16 aofrt 1947, lorsqu'un point a ete inscrit a 
l'ordre du jour du Conseil sur !'initiative d'une 
organisation -non gouvernementale, le representant 
de tette organisation peut faire une declar_ation 
afin de presenter son point de vue et une seconde 
declaration en cours de debat afin de donner 
certains eclaircissements complementaires. M. 
Saillant a presente Ia note de Ia Federation syndi
cate mondiale. Le President propose done que 
M. Toledano apporte au Conseil les eclaircisse
ments necessaires. 

Sur l'invitatio~ du President, M. Toledano, 
consultant de la Federation syndicale_ mondiale, 
prend place a la table du Conseil. 
- M. ToL~DANO (Federation syndicate mondiale) 
remercie le President de lui donner !'occasion de 
presenter quelques explications complementaires. 
II ne suivra pas l'exemple de certains representants 
qui se sont efforces de faire devier Ia discussion en 
ayant recours a des arguments de caractt~re per-
sonnel ou politique. -

To~tes les delegations interessees ont confirme, 
directement ou indirectement, l'authenticite des 
faits exposes dans la note de la FSM ; ils ont ainsi 
demontre Ie caractere objectif de ces renseigne
ments. La Federation syndicale mondiale a rendu 
service non seulement aux travailleurs directement 
interesses, mais encore a !'opinion mondiale qui 
doit etre informee des veritables conditions re
gnant dans certains pays. 

Le representant de Ia FSM expose diverses 
methodes utilisees par les Gouvernements qui ont 
viole le droit syndical. En premier lieu; ces Gou
vernements se sont efforces de rendre impossible 
le fonctionnement des organisations syndicales 
authentiques. Ils sont meme alles parfois_ jusqu'a 
priver ces organisations de leur personnalite juri
clique. Ils les ont aussi remplacees par d'autres 
organisations, patronnees, soit par les entreprises, 
soit par le Gouvernement lui-meme. 

On a pu aussi constater que l'exercice du droit 
de reunion publique etait, dans certains cas, 
interdit. II est arrive que les pouvoirs publics 
£assent occuper les locaux des groupements syndi
caux et saisir leurs archives. On a aus·si interdit 
la ~ollecte de cotisations syndicales par les organi--
sations independantes; par contre, des cotisations 
prelevees sur le salaire ont ete per<;ues pour le 
compte d'organisations syndicates gouvernemen
tales. Par ailleurs, ·certains Gouvernements ont 

476 



budgets of independent union organizations sub-
-ject to prior approval by the authorities. Vvhereas 

free elections of union leaders had been forbid
den, the Governments concerned .. had appointed 
as leaders individuals in whom they had full 
confidence. 

Another method consisted in ' forbidding per
sons considered as suspect to hold office as union 
leaders and delegates in public and semi-public 
organizations or in co-operatives. Workers who 
belonged to trade unions had also . been dis
charged and-so condenmed to unemployment. The 
right to strike had been abolished and whoever 
had tried to strike had been imprisoned. Thus 
workers who were loyal to independent unions 
had been imprisoned and at times interned in 
concentration camps. Similarly, many union lead
ers had been sentenced because of their union 
activities. The proponents of that policy had even 
gone so far as to entrust irresponsible individ
uals with the task of assassinating union leaders 
at public expense. Mr. Toledano then emphasized 
the fact that certain Governments had violated 
the privileges and immunities enjoyed by the 

_ observers of the WFTU, which were recognized 
by the· Council. 

The representative of the WFTU thought that 
such methods recalled fascist and nazi practices 
condemned by the United Nations. Greece and 
Spain constituted, in that connexion, remarkable 
examples. In its memorandum (E/ 822), the 
WFTU had placed certain facts before the Coun
cil. Mr. Toledano wished to point out to the 
members of the Council that Mr. Jose Sattte, the 
secretary of the International Federation of Ra
dio-Telegraphists, had been condemned -to death 
by a Spanish military court on 19 February 194_9. 
The workers of the whole world hoped that the 
UriiteQ. Nations would take steps to save him. 

Certain Governments wished to maintain a 
conspiracy of silence about the regime of terror 

_prevailing in Franco Spain. 
In Iran, also, more than 300,000 union workers 

had been deprived of their most elementary 
rights and several thousands of them had been 
!;"educed to unemployment. A dozen trade union 
leaders were now appearing before a military 
tribunal, being accused of having taken part in 
an attempt against the life of the Shah of Iran. 
It certainly seemed· as if the light of freedom had 
·been extinguished in that country. 

The representative of the WFTU thoug-ht that 
the representative of Greece had offered a bad 

· defence of a bad cause in the Council. Anyway, 
- despite the arguments he had used, the facts 

remained irrefutable. The representative of 
Greece had presented a partial and incomplete 
picture of the trade union movement in his coun
try. He had, however, recognized the fact that 
those whom he called communists were precisely 
the men who, weapons in hand, . had defended . 
their freedom against the nazi invader and that, 
numerically, they formed an important part of 
the Greek workers. 

The representative of Greece had stated that 
the Secretary-General of the WFTU had not 
personally visited Greece. That was inaccurate 
and at the unanimous invitation of delegates rep
resenting every trade union movement in the 
country, Mr. Louis Saillant had presided over a 
conference in Athens, on 2 December 1945, in 
the course of which an agreement had been 

_ soumis les budgets des· organisations syndicates 
independantes a !'approbation prealable des auto
rites. Alors que les elections libres de dirigeants 
syndicaux etaient interdites, les Gouvernements 
interesses imposaient comme· dirigeants des indi-
vidus jouissant de toute leur 'confiance. · 

Une autre methode a consiste a interdire a des 
personnes considerees comme suspectes des postes 
de dirigeants syndicaux et de delegues dans des 
organismes publics et semi-publics ou dans des -
cooperatives. On a aussi procede au renvoi 
d'ouvriers syndiques, ainsi condamnes au 
chomage. Le droit de greve a ete interdit et qui
conque a essaye de faire greve a ete emprisonne. 
II est arrive aussi que les travailleurs fideles aux 
groupements syndicaux independants aient ete 
emprisonnes et parfois internes dans des camps de 
concentration. De meme, de nombreux dirigeants 
syndicaux ont ete condamnes en raison de leur 
activite syndicate: On est alle jusqu'a charger des _ 
individus irresponsables, a la solde des potivoirs 
publics, d'assassiner des dirigeants syndicaux. 
Enfin, M, Toledano souligne que certains Gou
vernements ont viole les privileges et immunites 
dont jouissent Ies observateurs de Ia FSM, privi-
leges reconnus par le Conseit · -

Le representant de la FSM estime que ces 
methodes rappellent les pratiques fascistes et 
nazies condamnees par !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies. La Gn!ce et l'Espagne constituent· a cet 
egard, des exemples remarquables. La FSM, dans 
soh memorandum (E/822), a presente certains 
faits au Conseil. M. Toledano tient a signaler atix 
m~mbres du Conseil que M. Jose Statue, secre
tarre de la Federation des radiotelegraphistes, a 
et~ conda~r:e ~ mort le 19 fevrier 1949 par un · 
tnbunal- mrhtarre espagnoL Les travailleurs du 
monde entier esperent que !'Organisation dc;s 
Nations Unies prendra des mesures pour le sauver. 

Certains Gouvemements veulent maintenir-une 
conspiration du silimce _sur le regime de terreur 
qui n!gne dans l'Espagne franq~iste. 

. De meme, en Iran, plus de 300.000 ouvriers 
syndiques sont prhr_es de leurs droits les plus 
elementaires et plusieurs milliers d'entre eux -ont 
ete condamnes au chomage. Une douzaine de 
chefs syndicaux comparaissent, a l'heure actuelle, 
dev~n:: , u? ttribunal militaire, accuses d'avoir 
partrcrpe a un attentat contre le shah d'Iran. I! 
semble bien que dans -ce pays la lumiere de Ja 
liberte soit eteinte. -' 

Le representant de la FSM estime que le repre- · 
sentant de Ia Grece a presente, devant Ie Conseil, 
une mauvaise defense d'une mauvaise cause. 
Quels que soient les arguments dont il s'est servi 
il n' en reste pas moins que les faits sont irre~ 
futables. Le representant de la Grece a fait un 
historique partial et incomplet du mouvement 
syndical dans son pays. II a reconnu, pourtant, 
que ceux qu'il traite de communistes sqnt juste
ment les hommes qui; les armes a la main, ont 
defendu Ia liberte contre l'envahisseur riazi ef 
qui representent une partie importante des tra-
vailleurs grecs. · 

Le representant de la Grece a declare que Ie 
secretaire general de la FSM ne s'est pas rendu .. 
personnellement en Grece. Ceci est inexact : 
¥· Louis Saillant a preside, le 2 decembre 1945, 
sur !'invitation unanime des representants de 
toutes les tendances syndicalistes du pays, une 
conference tenue a Athenes, au cours de laquelle 
a ete pris !'engagement de reco~struire, sur des 



' 

made to reorganize the Greek General Confedera
tion of Labour on a democratic basis. British, 
French and Soviet trade union representatives 
had attended that conference. A few' weeks later 
terrorism had been unleashed against the Greek 
trade union leaders and groups. In that connexion 
the Government had taken a number of measures. 
For example, it had dissolved the General Con
federation ·of Labour, it had abrogated the law 
on trade union elections, arrested the secretaries 
of. the CGT while police had invaded the prem
ises of the CGT . . It had then entrusted a com
mittee with the- task of preparing new elections; 
and that committee had included among its mem
bers a number of former nazi collaborators. 

On 18 December 1945, the Greek Ambassador 
in Paris had addressed a letter to the Secretary-

. General of the WFTU in which he had thanked 
him in the name of his Government for the ef
forts which he had made for the amalgamation 
of . the four Greek trade union organizations. 
Those efforts, in fact, had been crowned with 
success. Some time later, the monarchist govern:.. 
ment had adopted quite a different attitude from 
that of t,he preceding government. It had per
petrated increasingly brutal violations of trade 
u_nion rights. 

The representative of Greece had said that if 
trade unionists had been tortured and assassi
nated, it was because they were communists. It 
was interesting to see how the Greek Government 
defined communists. Mr. Toledano pointed out 
that the judge of the court charged with trying 
the Greek sailors had qualified as communists 
Mr. Leon J ouhaux, head of the French CGT 
(Force ouvriere) and Mr. O!denbroek, member 
of the International Federation of Transport 
Workers, two inveterate enemies of communism, 
but who nevertheless had had the courage 'to 
protest against' the iniquity of that trial. 

The intervention of the President of the Gen
eral Assembly in favour of the Greek sailors 
had proved that the accusations levelled against 
them were devoid of all basis. The Greek Gov
ernment had refused to allow Mr. Dupont-Ville- · 
min, a well-known Swiss barrister, to visit Ath
ens to ensure the defence of the accused. The 
representative of Greece had asked the Council 
if it could imagine a country allowing foreign 
counsel to defend its nationals. Mr. To!edano 
recalled, in that connexion, the trial which had 
followed the burning down of the Reichstag; the 
hitlerite authorities had permitted foreign law
yers, including Mr. de Moro-Giafferi, to defend 

· the accuse<l The Greek Government was thus 
more nazi than the Nazis themselves. But tm
doubtedly it had remembered that the Reichstag 
trial . had turned ag3;inst those who had staged 
it, and had wished to avoid a repetition of such 
a fiasco. 

The representative of the WFTU reminded 
the Council that Mr. Paparigas, a -Greek trade 
union leader, had committed suicide in his cell ; 
that incident had- really been an assassination 
disguised as a suicide. And it should in fact be 
remembered that in the course of the last three 
years Mr. Paparigas had been arrested several 
times. Moreover, the accusations levelled against 
him by the Minister of Justice had been so 
devoid of foundation that the director of the 
prison where the accused man had been held for 
the last time had hesitated a whole week before 
daring to take up those accusations. 

principes democratiques, la Confederation gene
rate du Travail grecque. Des representants syndi
caux britanniques, fra,m;ais et sovietiques assis=
taient a cette conference. Quelques semaines .plus 
tard s'est declenche le terrorisme contre ·tes diri
gearits et les groupements syndicaux grecs. Le 
Gouvernement a pris a cet egard un certain nom:.. 
bre de mesures: il . a dissous la Con 'federation 
generate du travail, _abroge la loi sur les elections 
syndicates, arrete les secretaires de !a CGT et 
fait envahir les locaux de !a CGT par des forces 
de police. Enfin, il a charge un comite de pre
parer de nouvelles elections ; ce comite comprenait 
par~i .ses membres d'anciens collaborateurs des 
nazts. 

Le 18 decembre 1945, l'Ambassq,deur de Grece 
a -Paris a adresse au Secretaire general de !a 
FSM une lettre dans laque!le il le remerciait, au 
nom de son Gouvernement, des efforts qu'il avait 
accomplis en faveur de !'union des quatre organi
sations syndicates grecques. Ces efforts, en effet, 
avaient ete couronnes de succes. Quelque temps 
apres, le gouvernement monarchiste adoptait une 
attitude opposee a celle du gouvernement prece
dent. II commettait des violations de plus en plus 
brutales du droit syndical. 

Le representant de !a Grece a dit que si des 
syndicalistes ont ete tortures et assassines ·ils l'ont 
ete en tant que communistes: II est interessant de 
voir comment le Gouvernement grec definit les 
communistes : M. Toledano signale que le Presi
dent du tribunal charge de juger les marins 
grecs a qualifie de communistes M. Leon J ouhaux, 
chef de la CGT-Force ouvriere, et M. Olden
brock, membre de Ia Federation internationale des 
transports, deux ennemis acharnes du -commu
nisme, mais qui, pourtant, ont eu le courage de 
protester contre l'iniquite de ce proces. 

L'intervention du President de I' Assemblee ge
nerale en faveur des marins grecs a prouve que 
les accusations lancees contre eux etaient denuees 
de tout fondement. Le Gouvernement grec a 
refuse aM. Dupont-Villemin, avocat suisse repute, 
l'autorisation de se rendre a Athenes pour assurer 
Ia defense des accuses. Le representant de la 
Grece a demande au Conseil s'il pouvait imaginer 
qu'un pays autorise ttn avocat etranger a defendre 
ses nationaux. M. Toledano rappelle a cet egard 
le proces qui a sui vi l'incendie du Reichstag: les 
autorites hitleriennes ont permis a des avocats 
etrangers, dont Me de Moro-Giafferi, de defendre 
les accuses. Le Gouvernement grec est done plus 
nazi que les nazis eux-memes. Mais sans doute 
s'est-il rappele que le proces des incendiaires du 
Reichstag s'est retourne contre ceux qui l'avaient 
organise. II a voulu eviter le retour d'un pareil 
phenomene. · 

Le representant de la FSM rappe!le au Conseil 
que _M. Paparigas, chef syndicaliste gre<:;, a ete 

. trouve mort dans sa cellule: i1 s'agit, en fait, d'un 
assassinat deguise en suicide. II faut en effet se 
rappeler que, durant ces trois dernieres annees, 
M. Paparigas a ete arrete a maintes reprises. 
D'autre part, les accusations lancees contre lui 
par Ie Minist're de la justice etaient tellement de
nuees de fondement que le directeur de !a prison 
ou se trouvait incarcere !'accuse pour la derniere 
fois n'a . ose les reprendre qu'apres une-semaine 
d'hesitation. 

A "TO 



:; 

I ' 
i 

The representative of Brazil had been obliged 
to recognize the truth of the facts exposed by 
the ·world Federation of Trade Unions. He had 
admitted, in particular, that his Government con
sistently intervened in the activities of the trade 
union movement. He had explained that the Bra
zilian authorities · based their intervention on 
three principles; unity, neutrality and national-

-ity. ' 

The principle of unity, however; meant impos
ing on the workers a' single government-sponsored 
trade union whether they liked it ·or not; by 
neutrality was meant the possibility for the civil 
authorities to intervene in the domestic affairs 
of the trade union movement, the appointmel)t 
of the leaders of that movement and the. aboli-. 
tion of all vestiges of independence in the trade 
union organizations on the pretext that they 
were influenced by certain political ideas, whereas 
their sole task should be the defence of profes
sim'lal intetests. In connexion with · those mat
ters, Mr. Toledano felt that interesting prece
dents could be found in certain fascist countries. 
Lastly, the principle of nationality required Bra
zilian unions not to affiliate themselves with any 
international trade union organization of which 
the Government did not approve. 

Mr. Toledano recalled that on several occasions 
the WFTU had stressed the fact that it was not 
entirely satisfied with the "Freedom o_f Associa
tion and Protection· of the Right to Organize 
Convention, 1948", as adopted by the thirty-first 
session of the International Labour Conference 
at San Francisco in July 1948. If the WFTU 
consultant referred to it, that was merely to show 
that the Brazilian Government, which had voted 
in favour of that Convention, had violated the 
provisions of articles 2, 3 and 5, which proclaimed 
the right of freedom of association without prior · 
authorization on a national' as well as on the 
international level. 

Mr. Toledano emphasized the fact that the 
representative of Chile had devoted half of his 
speech to calumnious attacks against the World 
Federation of Trade Unions, attacks to which 
he did not wish to reply. The representative of 
Chile had pretended that the deeds of which his 
Government was accused had not been committed 
because of an anti trade union policy, but in 
pursuance of the fight against communism. In 
that connexion, however; it had to be noteP, 
that the Executive Committee of the WFTU, 
during a meeting . in Rome in May 1948,' had 
unanimously approved a resolution stating that 
the Government of Chile had violated trade union 
rights on several occasions. Representatives of 
the American Congress of Industrial Organiza
tions (CIO) and of trade union groups in the 
Netherlands, Australia and a number of other 
countries had attended that Conference, and had 
taken part in the vote on that resolution. More
over, funds had been collected to help the victims 
of repression in Chik, 

An . attempt had also been made to justify the 
persecution of the Confederation of · Chilean 
Workers by accusing it of communist leanings. 
That went to show that discrimination was 
being exercised for political or ideological rea
sons, which was unjustifiable, because it was 
well known that the Chilean trade unions in
cluded workers with no party affiliation as well 
as those belonging to a great variety of parties. 

Le representant du Bresil a dfi reconnaitre Ia 
veracite des faits exposes par Ia Federation syndi
cale mondiale. II a reconnu, en particulier, que 
son Gouvernement intervient activement dans la 
vie du mouvement syndical. II a explique que. Ies 
autorites bn!siliennes se fondaient a cet egard sur 
trois principes: unite, neutralite et nationalite. 

Le principe de !'unite signifie qu'il s'agit d'im
poser aux travailleurs, contre leur volonte, une 
seule organisation syndicale gouvernementale. ·Par 
neutralite, on entend Ia possibilite pour les pou
voirs publics d'intervenir dans les affaires inte
rieures du mouvement syndical, . de designer les 
chefs de ce mouvement et de supprimer toute 
independance des organisations syndicales sous 
pretexte que ces organisations sont influence~s 
par certaines idees politiques alors qu'elles ne 
devraient avoir pour seule tache que la defense 
des inten~ts professionnels. M. Toledano estime 
que, sur ce point, on peut trouver des precedents 
interessants dans certains pays fascistes. Enfin, 
Ia nationalite exige que les syndicats bresiliens. ne 
s'affilient pas a une organisation syndicale interna
tionale que le Gouvernement n'approuve pas. 

M. Toledano rappelle que la FSM a souligne, 
a plusieurs reprises, que la Convention sur Ia 
Iiberte syndicale et la protection du droit syndical, 
adoptee par la Conference internationale du travail 
a sa trente et unieme session tenue a San-Fran
cisco, en juillet 1948, ne la satisfaisait pas entiere
ment. Cependant, si Ie representant de la FSM 
l'invoque, c'est pour montrer que le Gouvernement 
bresilien, qui a :vote en faveur de cette Convention, 
a viole Ies dispositions de ses articles 2, 3 et 5 ·qui 
proclament Ie droit d'association syndicale sans 
autorisation prealable, tant sur le plan national 
que sur le plan inte~national. 

M. Toledano souligne que le representant du 
Chili a consacre Ia moitie de son discours ·a des 
attaques calomnieuses contre Ia Federation syndi
cale mondiale, attaques auxquelles · il ne desire 
pas repondre. Le representant du Chili a pretendu 
que Ies faits dont on accuse son Gouvernement 
ont ete commis, non pas en raison d'une politique 
antisyndicale, mais en application de la Iutte anti
communiste. II faut signaler a cet egard que Ie 
Comite executif de Ia FSM, n!uni a Rome en 
mai 1948, a approuve a l'unanimite une resolution 
etablissant que Ie Gouvernement du Chili a viole 
a maintes reprises les droits syndicaux. Des repre
sentants du CIO (Congress of Industrial Organi
zations) americain, de syndicats hollandais, aus
traliens et de plusieurs autres pays a.ssistaient a 
cette Conference, et ant participe au vote sur cette 
resolution. De plus, ii a ete procede a des collectes 
afin de porter assistance aux victimes de Ia 
repression chilienne. 

On a egalement tente de justifier les persecu
tions contre Ia Confederation des travailleurs 
du Chili en accusant cette organisation d'etre de 
tendance communiste. Cela tendrait done a 
prouver qu'il' existe des discriminations pour des 
raisons politiques ou ideologiques, ce qui est 
injustifiable, car · tout Ie monde sait que Ies 
syndicats chiliens groupent des travailleurs sans 
parti ainsi que des travailleurs appartenant aux 

470 

•. 



:-

School teachers had been persecuted · along with 
workers, employees, intellectual workers and 
others who had demanded the right to live in a 

·country where, quite apart from political -<:on
siderations, the cost of living was higher ·than 
anywhere in Latin America except Bolivia. 

vVith regard to the closing of the Pisagua con
centnition campl Mr. Toledano said that he was 

·proud of having been -instrumental in bringing 
about the abolition of that centre of political 
repression, which. hqd been unworthy of the lib
eral traditions of the American countries and of all democratic nations. Merely in order to show 
the falsity -of the Chilean representative's state
ments with regard to the treatment of prisoners 

· at Pisagua, he recallect Mr. Santa Cruz's asser
tion that the daily ration of the inmates amounted 
to 4,000 calories per head. An official F AO pub
lication, however, had stated that the average 
daily ration in Chile in 1947 had amounted to 
2,393 calories per person per day. It therefore 
had to be concluded that the Chilean Govern
ment had invented a new method of torture: 
instead of starving prisoners to death, as Hitler 
had done, it was attempting to see that they died 
of indigestion. 

. . 

The ·alleged paradise of Pisagua had in fact 
been an inferno. It had been found that the food 
was completely inadequate and that even 'the 
water~which in any case was liable to cause 

_ 'dysentery~was rationed. It had also been found 
that 40 per cent of the internes had never be
longed to any political party and did not know 
why they had been imprisoned. ·. 

Turning ·to the situation in Argentina, Mr. 
Toledano said that it deserved close considera
tion. But it was enough to say that in order to 

· confer legal validity on the semi-corporative char
acter of the Argentine trade unions, the draft 
constitution at present under study which, it was 
claimed, would endow the. workers ·with validity 
equal. to that of civil law, deliberately omitted 
the right to strike, in the absence of which ·an 
social legislation in· countries where the system 
·of government reposed upon private property 
was no more than a building without founda- · 
tions. That omission in reality gave legal sanc
tion to the policy pursued by the Argentine Gov
ernment against strikes; in accordance with its 
conception of a semi-corporative organization of 
society, that Government considered that it ·was 
for the State · to deal out justice without con
ferring any freedom on the workers, so that they 
could not use such freedom to exercise their 
rights. . · 

The representatives of Egypt and India had 
argued that the Council was not competent to 
deal with : that matter and that the· WFTU -had 
unnecessarily disturbed the Council's work with 
its class-war propaganda. 

It was true that in 1948 the ILO had adopted 
a convention on freedom of association. Apart 
from the defects of that document, the WFTU 
consultant reminded the Council tnat it was only 
competent to study the application of a conve_n
tion already ratified. The ratification of an in
ternational labour convention was not, _however, 
obligatory; the Convention adopted in 1948 had 
not yet been r~tified by any member of .the ILO. 
There was, therefore, little hope that it ever 

partis les plus - divers. Les instituteurs ont ete 
persecutes comme les ouvriers; les employes, les . 
travailleurs · intellectuels et tous ceux qui ont 
reclame le droit de vivre d~ns un pays ou, sans 
entrer dans des considerations politiques, le cout 
de la vie est plus eleve que _partout ailleurs en 
Amerique latine, sauf en Bolivie. 

En ce qui concerne la suppression du camp de 
concentration de Pisagua; M. Toledano se declare 
fier d'etre parvenu a eliminer ce centre de repres
sion politique, indigne des traditions liberales des. 
pays americains et de toutes les nations demo-_ 
cratiques. Dans le seul but d'illustrer la faus?ete 
des declarations du representant du Chili en ce 
qui concerne le traitement des prisonniers de 
Pisagua, le representant de la FSM rappelle la 

.declaration de M. Santa Cruz seton laquelle la 
ration quotidienne des detenus se montait a 4.000 
calories par personne. Or, on trouve dans une 
publication officielle de l'OAA que la ration quoti
dienne moyenne des Chiliens en 1947 se montait 
a 2.393 . calories par personne et par jour. I1 faut 
done en conclure que le Gouvernement . chili en a 
invente un nouveau moyen de torture et que, au · 
lieu de faire perir de faim les detenus, .comme 
le faisait Hitler, il cherche a les faire mourir 
d'indigestion. · 

En realite, le pn!tendu paradis de Pisagua eta~t 
un enfer. On a constate que !'alimentation y etait 
tout a . fait insuffisante et que meme l'eau, qui 
d'ailleurs provoque des dysenteries, etait ration
nee. On a_ egalement constate que 40 pour 100 des 
internes n'avaient jamais appartenu a aucun parti 
politique et ignoraieat les raisons de leur interne-
ment. · 

Passant ala situation en Argentine, M. Toledano 
deClare que cette situation meriterait ample con
sideration . . I1 suffit de dire que, pour sanctionnet: 
definitivement le caractere semi-corporatif des syn
dicats argentins, le pro jet_ de constitution actuelle
ment a l'etude, et qui pretend elever a la valeur 
d'un principe de droit public les droits de la 
classe ouvriere, omet deliberement le _droit de 
greve sans lequei, dans les pays dont le regime est 
fonde sur la propriete privee, toute la legislation _ 
sociale n'est· plus qu'un edifice sans fondement. 
Cette omission consacre en fait la politique suivie 
par le Gouvernement argentih pour s'opposer aux 
greves; ce Gouvernement considere, confotmement 
a sa conception d'une organisation semi-corpora
tive des classes sociales, ·qu'il appartient a l'Etat 
de rendre la justice sans laisser les travailleurs en 
liberte afin qu'ils ne puissent utiliser cette liberte 
pour se prevaloir de leurs droits. · 

M . . Toledano - rappelle ensuite que les repre
sentants de l'Egypte et de l'Inde ont pretendu que 
le Conseil n'etait pas competent pour traiter de 
cette affaire et que la FSM est venue im1tilement 
troubler Ies travaux du Conseil avec sa propa
gande de classe. 

I1 est exact que I'OIT a adopte en 1948 une 
convention relative aux libertes syndic<!.les. Abs
traction faite des lacunes de cet instrument, · le 
representant de la FSM rappelle que le Conseil 
n'est .competent que pour etudier !'application d'une 
convention deja ratifiee:· Mais la ratification d'une 
convention internationale sur le travai·l n'est pas 
obligatoire, et cette convention, adoptee · en 1948, 
n'a_ete jusqu'ici ratifiee par aucun des membres de 
l'OIT. I1 y a done peu d'espoir qu'elle le soit 



would be· ratified, especially by States which sys
tematically opposed trade union rights. Even if 

- it were ratified, it would be 'difficult to supervise 
its application. The ILO's supervisory machinery 
was clumsy and complicated· and the proof was 
'that it had never yet been used since· the ILO 
had been set up. In any case, the tripartite ma
chinery would function against the interests of 
the workers, for it was clear that the employers 
would not defend trade union rights. In that con
nexion, Mr. Toledano pointed out that labour's 
representation in the ILO was being guaranteed 

-more and more by representatives of government-
sponsored trade union groups which were in fact 
mere shadow organizations. He laid special em
phasis on the ILO's lack of universality which 
prevented it from exercising a r.eally inte~national 
influence. 

It therefore seemed that for technical ·and 
practical reasons the Council's competence · was 
obvious. The aims laid down in Article 55 of 

·the Charter, such as economic and social prog
ress and higher standards of living, could only 
be achieved by the exercise and development of 
trade union rights, for democratic principles 
could ·be applied only if the workers' organiza

. tions were allowed to take part in shaping pol-
icies in the economic and social fields. · 

Furthermore, under. Article 63, paragraph 2 
of the Charter, the Council was empowered to 
co-ordinate the activities of the specialized. agen
cies. Such co-ordinating functions logically im
plied that the Council _had to intervene directly 
in problems which a specialized agency could not 
solve either for legal or practical reasons. It had 
already been seen that the ILO could not carry 
out effective and immediate work in the field of 
trade union rights. In view of the urgency of the 
problem, of the steps . taken by certain Govern
ments and of the fact that there had been mass 
arrests and murders of trade unionists, the Coun
cil could not fail to take action and ought to do 
so. Moreover, in accordance with Article 55, the 
Council had to promote respect for, and ob
servance of, _human rights, which clearly showed 
that it was not a matter of an abstract declara
tion or one of a general nature but of securing 
respect for rights which were being violated. 

Moreover, by resolutions 128 (II) of the 
General Assembly and 84 (V) of the Economic 
and Social Council the United Nations had de
cided to adopt certajn principles which, inade
quate. though they might be, were being violated, 
as the WFTU had shown. In view · of the fact 
that no other United Nations body could dis
charge that task, it was for the Economic and 
Social Council to make certain that those prin
ciples were not being violated. That view was 
confirmed by resolution 119 (II) of the General 
Assembly in which Member States were called 
upon to carry out the recommendations of the 
Council and report periodically on steps taken 
in that field. He quoted a number of other reso
lutions and statements showing that the Council 
could and should deal with infringements of trade 
union rights. 

Mr. Toledano finally advocated the need to 
justify the hopes which the peoples and wor~ing 
masses had placed upon the Charter by action 
genuinely calculated to restore their confidence in 

jamais, surtout par les Etats qui combattent syste
matiquement les droits syndicaux. Mais, meme si 
elle etait ratifiee, le controle de son application 
serait difficile. En effet, le mecanisme de controle 
de l'OIT est encombrant et complique; la preuve 
en est qu'il n'a encore jamais ete utilise depuis la 
creation de l'OIT. De toute maniere, ce mecanisme 
tripartite fonctionnerait a . l'encontre des interets 
des travailleurs, car il est evident que les patrons 
ne defendraient pas les droits syndicaux. · M. T ole
dana fait observer a ce sujet que la representation 
ouvriere au sein de l'OIT est de plus en· plus 
assuree par les representants de groupements 
syndicaux gouvernementaux qui ne sont en fait 
que des fantomes d'organisations. II insiste en 
particulier sur le manque d'universalite de l'OIT, 
qui empeche cette organisation d'avoir une influ
ence veritablement. internationale. 

II semble done au contraire que Ia competence . 
du Conseil est evidente, cela pour des raisons a la 
fois techniques et pratiques. Les objectifs signales 
a 1' Article 55 de la Charte, tels que le progres 
dans l'ordre economique et social, le relevement 
des niveaux de vie, ne peuvent etre atteints que 
par l'exercice et le developpement des droits syndi
ca,ux, car les principes democratiques ne peuvent · 
etre appliques que si l'on fait participer les organi
sations ouvrieres a !'elaboration des politiques dans 
les domaines economique et social. 

De plus, aux termes du paragraphe 2 de !'Arti
cle 63 de la Charte, le Conseil est charge de 
coordonner l'activite des institutions specialisees. 
En toute logique, ces fonctions de coordination 
impliquent que le Conseil doit intervenir directe
ment dans les problemes qu'une institution spe
cialisee ne saurait resoudre, que ce soit pour des _ 
raisons juridiques ou pour des raisons pratiques. 
On a deja vu que l'OIT ne peut accomplir dans 
le domaine des droits syndicaux un travail efficace 
et immediat; devant l'urgence du probleme et du 
fait des mesure:S px:ises par certains Gouverne- -
ments, du fait aussi qu'il y a eu detention et assas
sinat en masse de syndicalistes, le Conseil ne peut 
que prendre des mesures immediates, et il doif le 
faire. D'ailleurs, aux termes de !'Article 55 de la 
Charte, le Conseil doit assurer le respect effectif 
des droits de l'homme, ce qui indique clairement 
qu'il ne s'agit pas la d'une declaration abstraite 
ou de caractere general, mais qu'il s'agit de fai.re 
respecter les droits qui sont violes. ·- _ 

Par ailleurs, par les resolutions 128 (II) de 
I' Assemblee generale et 84 (V) du Conseil, !'Or
ganisation des Nations Unies a decide de faire 
siens certains principes qui, bien qu'insuffisants, 
sont violes, comme l'a montre la FSM. Du fait 
qu'aucun autre organe des Nations Unies ne peut 
s'acquitter de cette tache, il appartient au Conseil 
ecpnomique et social de s'assurer que ces principes 
ne sont pas violes. Ce point de vue est encore con
finite par la resolution 119 (II) de 1' Assemblee 
generale, par laquelle· les Etats Membres spnt 
invites a appliquer les resolutions du Conseil et a 
faire periodiquement rapport sur les mesures prises 
dans ce domaine. Le representant de la FSM cite 
encore un certain nombre de resolutions ef de 
declarations prouvant que le Conseil peut et doit 
agir a propos des violations des droits syndicaux. 

M. Toledano conclut a la necessite de justifier 
l'esppir que les peuples et les masses laborieuses 
ont mis dans la Charte, et cela en prenant des 
mesures sinceres de nature a leur rendre confiance 

481 



! 

the United Nations. The WFTU believed that 
it was called upon to draw. the Council's atten- · 
tion to that need. The authors of Article 71 
of the ·charter_ had certainly understood when 
they had drafted it how essential it was for the 
United Nations to secure the co-operation · of 
public opinion and to associate the workers' or
ganizations with the work of the Council in order 
to make it more effective and give it a solid 
basis. The authors of the Charter had wished 
to obtain that co-operation so that the Council 
might take account of all aspects of the situa-. 
tion, and not merely those which the representa
tives of the Governments mighf present. In prac
tice, moreover, the latter sometimes threw a con
fused and dubious light on the facts. 

For that reason, the WFTU, which reflected 
the aspirations of the organized masses, requested 
the Council not fo confine itself to voting reso
lutions with no practical bearing. The WFTU 
had appeared before the Council to present con
crete, if painful, facts; they could not be brushed 
aside with elegant but ineffective legal phrases. 
The Member States which had criticized the ac
tion: of the WFTU merely showed thereby that 
they feared' world public opinion. Their conscious
ness of guilt led _them to stifle the voice of the 
WFTU and once again to re-open the question 
of rights · granted to the non-governmental or
ganizations after three years of discussion. 

The WFTU was conscious that it had striven 
in accordance with its duty and the Charter to 
help the Council. It would continue to urge the 
workers to support the United Nations, certain 
that the Council, in the light of the present dis
cussion, would recognize the value of its efforts 
and the honesty of its behaviour. 

· Mr. AzKOUL (Lebanon) recalled that his coun
try was listed among those which had ~een 
accused of violating the Charter of the Umted 
Nations and the decisions of the -General As
sembly and the Economic and Social Council ; 
the representative of the USSR had just repeated 
that accusation without taking into account the 
statement of Mr. Louis Saillant, secretary-general 
of the World Federation of Trade Unions. It 
em~rge'd clearly from that statement that the 
trade union leader who, it had been claimed, had 
been subjected to illegal and unjustified prosecu
tion, had been tried in the usual way by regular 
courts for criminal offences. 

Mr. BoRBERG (Denmark) said that the In
ternational Labour Organisation was fully com- · 
petent to examine the question under discussion; 
he was therefore in favour of the draft resolution 
submitted by the New Zealand delegation 
(E/1208). He pointed · out, however, that no 
provision had been made for the transmission 
to the ILO and to the Commission on Human 
Rights, of the statements made to the Council by 
the organizations mentioned in the first para
graph of the New Zealand .draft resolution. 

: He therefore asked the representative of New 
Zealand whether he would agree to alter the 

. beginning of the last paragraph of that resolu-
tion as follows: · 

"Transmits for · their information the above
mentioned statentents and the records of the dis-
cu~sion ... " 

·Mr. SuTcH (New Zealand) accepted the 
ainendm~nt proposed by the representative of 
Denmark. 

dans !'Organisation. des Nations Unies. La -FSM · 
estime qu'elle a pour mission d'attirer !'attention , 
du Conseil sur cette necessite. En redigeant 1: Arti
·cle 71 de Ia Charte, les auteurs de ce document ont 
certainement compris jusqu'a quel point il ·est· 
indispensable pour !'Organisation de s'assurer le · 
concours de !'opinion publique mondiale et d'asso
cier les organisations ouvrieres aux travaux du 
Conseil afin de rendre ces travaux plus efficaces 
et de les fonder sur une realite concrete. Les 
auteurs de la Charte ont voulu obtenir ce concours 
pour que le Conseil se rende compte de tous les 
aspects de Ia situation et non uniquement de ceux 
que peuvent exposer les representants des Gou
vernements. En effet, ces derniers jettent sur les 
faits un lumiere parfois ambigue et confuse. 

C'est pourquoi la FSM, qui reflete les aspira
tions des mass·es organisees, demande · au Conseil 
de ne pas se borner a voter des resolutions qui 
n'ont aucune portee pratique. La FSM est venue 
apporter au Conseil des faits concrets quoique 
douloureux; on ne saurait . les eliminer par de's 
formules juridiques elegantes mais inefficaces. Les 
Etats Membres qui ont critique !'action de la FSM 
montrent seulement qu'ils ont peur de !'opinion 
publique mondiale. Leur sentiment de culpabilite 
les amene a etouffer la voix de Ia FSM eta remet
tre a nouveau en question les droits octroyes aux 

. organisations non gouvernementales a pres trois 
ans . de discussion. 

La -FSM a conscience d'avoir travaille, con
formement a son devoir et a.· Ia Charte, a aider le 
Conseil. Elle continuera a inviter les travailleurs a 
appuyer !'Organisation des Nations Unies, sure 
que le Conseil, a Ia lumiere de cette discussio'n, 
reconnaitra !'importance de ses efforts et . la 
loyaute de sa conduite. 

M. AzKOUL · (Liban) rappelle. que .son pays 
. figure au nombre de ceux . qui ont ete accuses de 
violer Ia Charte des Nations Unies ainsi que les 
decisions de l'Assemblee generale et du- Conseil 

. economiqtie et social. Le representant de l'URSS 
vient de repeter cette accusation, sans tenir compte 
de Ia declaration de M. Louis Saillant, secretaire 
gerieral de Ia Federation syndicale mondiale. II 

· ressort clairement de cette declaration d'e le chef 
syndical que l'on pretendait avoir ete !'objet de 
poursuites illegales et injustifiees a ete ju'ge nor
malement par des tribunaux reguliers, pour delits 
de droit commun. · 

M. BoRBERG (Danemark) rappelle que !'Organi
sation int_ernationale du Travail est parfaitement 
competente pour examiner le probleme; c'est pour
quai il se declare en faveur du projet de resolution 
presente par la Nouvelle-Zelande (E/1208). I1 
fait remarquer cependant que celui-ci ne prevoit 
pas Ia transmission a l'OIT et a Ia Commission des 
droits de l'homme des declarations faites devant 
le Conseil par les organisations mentionnees au 
premier' paragraphe .· du pro jet de resolution. 

C'est potirquoi il demande au representant de . 
Ia N ouvelle-Zelande s'il accepterait de rt10difier 
comme suit le debut du dernier paragraphe de · 
son projet de resolution: 

"Transmet pour. information les deciMations 
susnu?ntionnees et les proces-verbaux de ses 
debats .. . " 

M. SuTcH ( N ouvelle-Zelande) accepte !'amen
dement propose par le representant du Danemark. 

J!Q? 



Mr. SKOROBOGATY (Byelorussian Soviet Social- M. -SKoROBOG,ATY (Republique socia)iste sovie-
. ist Republic) observed thaf one of the characteris- tique de Bielorussie) constate qu'un des traits 

tic ·features of the post-war period was an in- caractt~ristiques de Ia periode d'apres-guerre est 
tensification of the world~wide campa,ign by une accentuation de !'action des milieux reaction
reactionary and capitalist circles against the . naires ·et capitalistes du monde entier contre Ia 
working class; The capitalists were making efforts · classe ouvriere. Les capitalistes s'efforcent de pro
to protect their interests· and, for that purpose, teger leurs interets et, dans ce but, de transformer 
to transform the working class into a herd of la dasse o~vriere en un troupeau d'esclaves . . Les 
'slaves. The trade unions were persecuted in cer- syndicats ouvriers sont persecutes, sinon sup
tain countries, if not abolished .. The WFTU had primes, dans certains pays. La FSM a proteste a · 
justifiably protested against such violations of •juste titre contre· cette violation des ·principes de 

_ the principles of the Charter. The Economic and Ia Charte. ·Le Conseil economique et social possede 
Social Council had before it enough information suffisamment d'elements pour se conva,incre de la 
to be . convinced o_f the gravity of such persecu- gravite de ces persecutions et de la violation -des 

· · tion and of the violation of trade union rights. libertes syndicales. Certains pays, parmi lesquels 
Certain · countries, some of them members of the des membres du Conseil, ont cherche par totis les 
Council, had sought in every possible way to pre- moyens a eviter que celui-ci examine la ques

- vent the . examination of that question ·by the tion et prenne les decisions qui s'irnposent; le 
Council and the adoption of the decisions caJled Conseil a bien fait de ne pas les suivre. En effet, 
for; the Council had been right in not fol-lowing- le Conseil economique et social est un organe appele 

·such a . course. The Economic and Social Council a faire anx Etats Membres de 1'0rganisation des 
was indeed a body called upon to make such .. Nations Unies les recommandations qu'il. juge 

· ·recommendations as it deemed · fit to Member utiles concernant Ia defense des droits de. l'homme 
_ States of the United Nations for the defence . of et des llbertes fondamentales. · 
·human rights and fundamental freedoms . 

. It was · well known that · the monarchist · and 
rea~tionary g~:wernment of Greece, with the co
operation of the United Kingdom and the United 
States, had made many attempts to suppress the 
free trade unions and to replace them with unions 
in its pay: Even before the war, the Metaxas 
g-overnment had imposed a semi-fascist regime 
·upon Greece; but when the Italians had invaded 
that country in 1941, the Greek workers had 
organi:?:ed resistance and had pursued it bravely 
throughout the occupation. 

After the war,· the trade unions had attempted 
to reo_rganize their · ranks, but the Government 
had soon ·taken ·a series of measures culminat
ing- in the suppression of · all free trade tmion 
activities. Tli.us, a~ong other thin~s . in 1946 the 
~upreme Court had annulled the election of trade 
uni'on leaders; the Government had apnointed 
persons to replace them who had signed colJective · 
contracts which the workers. had been totally 
t1nable to accept. When the latter had tried to 

. rise in protest aj!ainst the actions of . their so-
. called leaders, the Government had initiated meas-
t1res of savag-e repression against the workers' 
rlemon_strations. . · . 

The representative of_ the Byelorussi;~n SSR 
rec;J.llerl that the Secretary-General of the WFTU 
had sent a teleg-ram of protest to . the Secretary
G<'nen\1 of the United Nations concerning- the ex
ecntion of Greek democrats accused of nolitical 
c-rimes. He also · mentioned the case of the ten 
seamen in the Greek merchant marine who had 
heen ~rrested and · thrown into orison without 
i11~tification: they had belong-ed to free ·trade 
unions and had been working- to improve the lot 

· of men in the merchant marine. 

Mr. Skorobogaty recalleci th~t oublic opmton 
in certain countries had nrotested ag-ainst such 
practices and that the First Committee of the 
General Assembly had conciemned the acts of 
terror committed by the Greek Government. He 
thoug-ht it necess'itry to point out that the seamen 
in q:testion had, however, not been freed. 

In Latin America the trade union movement 
had also been the victim cit wide persecution. In 
August 1948 the Chilean ·Government had de-

Tout le monde sait que le gouvernement mo
narchique· et reactionnaire de la Grece, avec -la 
cooperation des Etats-Unis et du Royaume-Uni, a 
deploye de nombreux efforts pour supprimer les 
syndicats libres et les rem placer par des syndicats · 
qui soient a sa solde. Deja avant la gtierre, le 
gouvernement Metaxas avait impose a la Grece 
un regime semi-fasciste; mais lorsque, en 1941, 
les Italiens envahirent.le pays, les ouvriei-s grecs 
organiserent la resistance a !'occupant et poursui
virent leur action courageuse pendant tot.ite la 
duree de !'occupation. . 

Apres la guerr~, les sy~dicats ont essaye de se 
reorganiser, mais le Gouvernement ne tarda pas 
a prendre une sei:ie 4e mesures qui eurent pour 
consequence la suppression de foute activite syn
dicate libre. C'est ainsi, notamment, que la Cour 
supreme a annule, en 1946, !'election des chefs 
syndicaux; le Gouvernement a nomme leurs rem- ·· 
pla~ants, Iesquels ont s,igne des contrats collectifs 
totalemel).t inacceptables pour les ouvriers. Lorsque 
ceux-ci _voulurent s'elever contre l'attitud·e de leurs 

· pretendus dirigeants, le GouveJ::nement entreprit 
une repression feroce des manifestations ouvrieres . 

Le representant de la RSS de Bielorussie rap
pelle que le secretaire general de Ia FSM a adresse 
un telegramme de protestation au Secretaire gene
ral de !'Organisation des Nations Unies concernant 

. !'execution de democrates grecs accuses de crimes 
politiques. II cite egalement le cas des dix matelots · 
de Ia marine marchande grecque, arretes et jete~ 
en prison sans aucune justification.; ils apparte
naient aux syndicats libres . ·et travaillaient a 
!'amelioration du sort des hommes de la marine 
~narchande. 

M. Skorobogaty rappel_le que l'opinio~ publique 
de certains pays s'est elevee contre ces pratiques 
et que la Premiere Commission de l' Assemblee 
generaTe a condamne les actes de terreur commis 
par · le Gouvernement grec. · II croit utile de 
signaler que les maritis en question n'ont _cepen-
dant pas ete liberes. . 

En Amerique latine, le mouvement sytidical est 
egalement victime de nombreuses persecutions. En . 
aoftt 1948, le Gouvernement du Chili a proclame _ 

483 .· 

I 

•. 



dared a state of siege; and, in consequence strikes 
had been- illegal. The .representative of Chile 
had been able only to utter slanders against the 
vVFTU ~d its leaders; a resort to stich methods 

· certainly said little in favour of the Cl}ilean Gov
ernment. 

In certain Latin-American countries . trade 
union activities were officially authorized ,but in . 
practice they were reduced to nothing. 

That ,was the case also in the United States, 
Germany, Austria and Japan. In the United 
States, trade union activity was being stifled by · 
means of the Taft-Hartley Act, commonly called 
'!the Slave Act". In Japan, in _contravention of 

-the armistice terms, the Government had forbid
den mass demonstrations by the worker$. General 
MacArthur had advised the Japanese Govern
ment to revise existing legislation so as to forbid 
civil servants from taking part in strikes. The 
Government had deprived a large part of the 
people of the exercise of their constitutional_ 
rights. In Japan, as in Germany and Austria, 
the authorities had put into force a local version 
of the Taft-Hartley Act. In France too, workers 
had been imprisoned and maltreated for having 
stood up for their rights and union officials had 
·been prosecuted. In the United States, armed· 
force had been used on several occasions against 
strikers. 

· As to the American Federation of Labor's 
statement about the situation and living condi
tions of the workers in the USSR, he said that 
that Federation was under the orders of reac
tionary circles in Wall Street; the customary 
weapons of such persons were lies ,and slander. 
The American Federation of Labor should not 
be surprised that USSR workers did not strike; 
they were their own employers and worked for 
the entire community. Against whom, then, would 
they strike? If the United States trade unions 
enjoyed the same rights as the trade unions in 
the USSR, obviously they would not have to 
resort to the strike. 

The delegation of the Byelorussian SSR there
fore · supported the resolution submitted by the 
USSR (E/1124); a resolution pf that kind would 
meet the aspirations of millions of workers 
throughout the world. 

Mr. SANTA CRuz (Chile) said that he had al
ready had occasion to explain why he could not 
accept the statements of the WFTU; he had 
set forth in detail what was happening in Chile 
and did not deem it necessary to reply once again 
·to baseless attacks upon his country. He wished, 
however, to stress the fact that the citizens of 
Chile had had an opportunity to express freely 
their complete support of the policy pursued by 
the Government and had thereby inflicted a sting-

. ing defeat on tho·se in Chile who advocated the 
ideas of the World F ederation of Trade Unions. 

The meeting rose at 5.10 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED AND SIXTY-FIFTH 
MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, N ew York, 
on T1tesday, 8 March 1949, at 11 a.m.-

President:. Mr. J ames THORN (New ·Zealand). 

'-

l't~tat de Stege: en consequence, la greve fut de::_ 
clan~e hors la loi. Le representant du Chili n'a pu 
que proferer des calomnies a_ l'egard de la FSM 
et de ses chefs ; le recours a ce procede ne plaide 
certes pas en faveur du Gouvernement du Chili. 

. Dans ·certains pays d' Amerique latine, l'activite 
syndicale est officielleinent autorisee, mais elle ·est 
pratiquement reduite- a neant. . 

C'est egalement le cas pour les Etats-Uriis, 1' Al
lemagne, l'Autriche et le Japan. Aux Etats-Unis, 
l'activite syndicale est etouffee au moyen de la loi . 
Taft-Hartley, communement appelee "loi esclava
giste". Au Japan, contrairement aux conditions 
d'armistice, le gouvernement a interdit les mani-

. festations des masses ouvrieres. Le general 
MacArthur a recommande au Gouvernement" ja
ponais de reviser la legislation en vigueur de 
maniere a interdire aux employes de l'Etat toute 
participation aux greves. Le Gouvernement a 
prive tme grande partie de la population de 
1' exercice des droits -constitutionnels. Au J apon, 
comme en Allemagne et en Autriche, les autorites 
ont mis en vigueur une version locale de la loi 
Taft-Hartley. · En France ·egalement, les ouvriers 
ont ete emprisonnes et malmenes pour avoir 
milite pour la defense de leurs droits, .et les 
fonctionnaires des syndicats ont ete poursuivis. 
Aux Etats-Unis, a diverses reprises, la for~e 
armee a ete utilisee pour combattr'e les grevistes. 

En ce qui concerne la declaration de la Federa
tion americaine du travail au sujet de la situation 
et des conditions de vie des ouvriers en URSS, 

· M. Skorobogaty rappelle que cette federation est 
aux ordres des milieux reactionnaires de wall 
Street; les armes habituelles de ces gens-la sont 
le mensonge et la calomnie. La Federation ameri
caine du travail ne pevrait pas s'etonner de ce que 
les ouvriers sovietiques ne se mettent pas en greve ; 
!'Union sovietique a supprime !'exploitation de 
l'homme par l'homme de telle sorte que les travail
leurs sont leurs propres patrons et travaillent pour 
!'ensemble de !a population. Contre .qui, par con
sequent, se mettraient-ils en greve? Si les syndi
cats des Etats-Unis jouissaient des memes droits 
que ceux de l'URSS, il est evident qu'ils n'auraient 
pas a recourir a !a greve. 

Pour toutes ces raisons, !a delegation de-la RSS 
de Bielorussie appuie le projet de resolution pre
sente par l'URSS (E/1124) ; une telle resolution 
repondra aux aspirations des millions de travail-
leurs du monde entier. · 

M. SANTA CRuz (Chili) rappelle qu'il a deja eu 
!'occasion de dire pourquoi il ne pouvait accepter 
les declarations de la FSM . . II a expose en detail 
ce qui se passe au Chili et ne croit pas necessaire 
de repondre une fois de plus aux attaqttes sans 
fondement dirigees contre. son pays. II desire 
cependant souligner que les citoyens du Chili ont 
eu tout nkemment !'occasion d'exprimer librement 
leur appui total a l'egard de la politique suivie par 
le Gouvernement, et ont inflige de ce fait une 
defaite, cuisante a ceux qui, au Chili, professent les 
idees de la F ederation syndicale mondiale. 

La seance est levee a 17 h. 10. 

DEUX-CENT-SOIXANTE-CINQUIEME 
SEANCE 

T enue·a Lake Success, N ew-York, 
.. le mardi 8 mars 1949, a 11 heures. 

President : M. James THORN (Nouvelle-Zelande). 




